Company Registration No: 201025088 K

SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{(Incorporated in Singapore)
ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019



SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

31 DECEMBER 2019

CONTENTS PAGE
Directors” Statement )
Independent Auditor's Report 1.6
atatemenis of Comprehbensive Income 7
Statements of Financial Position §-9

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity [0}

Swtement of Changes in Equity 11
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 12
Cash Flow Statement 13

Mates o the Financial Siatemesits I4-73



SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBSIMARY COMPANIES
DMRECTORS' STATEMENT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

The directors present their statement to the shareholder together with the sudited financial stateinents of
SPBD Microfinance Holdings {Singapore) Pte. Lid, (the “Company™) and the audited conselidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) for the financial year ended 31 Decermnber

20159,

In the opinion of the directors:

(e}

(b)

the accompanying hinancial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Group and the Company for the year then ended; and

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able
o pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Gregory Francis Casagrande
Wu Pei Ngee Penny

Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enahle the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors” Interests in Shares or Debentures

According 1o the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the Company under section 164 of the
Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 30, the directors of the Company who held office &l the end of
the financial year had no interest in the shares or debentures of the Company and related
corporations either at the beginning of the financial year or date of appointment or at the end of the
financial year, except as follows:

Registered in the name of director

SPBD Microfinance Holdings (Delaware) L.L.C. Al the beginning At the end
(Immediate and Lltimate Holding Company] of the yvear of the vear
Percentage of equity jnierest

Crrepory Francis Casagrande 100% [



SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
DMRECTORS' STATEMENT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4 Share Options

There were no share options granted to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company or any
corparation in the Group during the financial year.

There were no shares issued during the financial vear by virlue of the exercise of options 1o take up
unissued shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group.

There were o unissued shares of the Company or any corparation in the Group under oplion at the
end of the financial year.

5 Independent Auditor

Moare Stephens LLP has expressed its willingness 1o decepd re-appointment is auditors,

Dlirectors

) I'|IIIIJ.I -!:I L L N r I I I FAEEAN i B i o PYTIeLI A T
CREGORY FRARICTS CASAGRANDE WL PEI NGEE

15 May 2020



hd MOORE MOORE STEPHENS LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF

SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{(Incorporated in Singapore)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cpimion

We have audited the financial statements of SPBD Microfinance Holdings (Singapore) Pre. Lid. (the
“Company™) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement of the Group, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and cash flow statement of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the
Financial statements, including a summary of significant sccounting palicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial
statements of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act,
Chapter 50 {the Act) and the Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRS8s™) 50 as 1o give a troe and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2019 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Bosis for Opivion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs™), Our respensibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statemens section of our repart. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and
Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA™) Code of Professional Comdwet amd Ethics for Public
Accountants ond Accownting Envities ("ACRA Code™) together with the cthical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapors, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion,

Cither Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the “Directors’
Statement™.

Owr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereomn.

[n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infommation
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is & material misstatement of this other informaticon,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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hd MOORE MOORE STEPHENS LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT T THE SHAREHOLDER OF

SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

(cont"d)
Responsibilities of Mamagement and Directors for the Fimancial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets arc safeguarded against loss
from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as
necessary Lo permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintzin accountability of
assels,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors” responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonzble assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with S8As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influsnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
seepticism throvghout the audit. We also;

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

«  Obtain an vnderstanding of intemal control relevant to the andit in order to design avdit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,



hd MOORE MOORE STEPHENS LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF

SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) FTE. LTD.
(Incorporaied in Singapore)

focont™d]
Anditor s Respongibilities for the Audit of the Finaneial Statements (cont"d)

= Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of secounting
gstimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 3 material uncertainty exists related © events or
conditions that may cest significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue a going concern, If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obteined up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 1o conlinue as a going concern.

«  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group asdit, We remain solely
responsible for cur audit opinen

We communicate with the directors regarding, emong other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during aur audit.

We also provide the directors with a staternent that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key awdit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing that a matter shouald not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



CHAETERED ACCOUNTARTS OF SRGAFDRE

u MOORE MOORE STEPHENS LLP

INDEPENDENT AUMTOR'S REFORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF

SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

fcontd)
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company hiave been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Moore Sh2piaeas UL

Moore Stephens LLFP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
15 May 2020



SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Grip Company
Mote 2019 2018 2014 2018
Uss Lg% Uss uss

Financial revenuc 4 7406404 6,409 26 836,352 AAB.036
Interest income 347044 4954572 251,352 207255
Dthers 1,930,460 1,454 689 585,000 630, TR
Other income 5 338,787 194,945 104,254 43,153
Financial expenses 6 (1.697484) (1,530877)  (395,162) (363,190}
Allowance for loans losses (163,014)  (228.350) = -
Cihers (1,534.470) (1,302,527) (395,162) (363,190}
Other operating expenses (4,759.360) (4239819 (464427 (506,142}
Profit before income tax 7 1,308,347 833,510 81,747 11,857
Income tax expense B [267,548) (217,087} (104 {4,678)
Profit for the financial vear 1,040,790 616,423 £1.643 7179
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:

feews vt iy e reclossiffed subsequently

o prafir or foss

- Exchamge differences on translation of
foreign operations (70,296) 1on,11é - -

Total comprehensive income for the

financial vear 070,503 716,539 al,643 7179

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

(Incorporated in Singapore)
ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 PECEMBER 2019
Group Company
Mote 2019 2018 2019 2018
uss Uss uss 85
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assels
Croodwill ) 407 438 407,435 - =
Property, plant and equipment L] 1,093,566 456,608 - -
Investments in subsidiaries 11 - . 1,887,660 [, 887,669
Amount due from subsidiaries 12 - - 4,506,566 31,592.997
Other receivahles 14 232,356 - . -
1,733,260 BG4,046 6,394,235 5,480,606
Current Asseis
Loans portfolio 13 16,612,599 13,363,346 . x
Amount due from subsidiaries 12 - - 1,102,632 579353
Oiher receivables 14 277128 304,437 2025 2248
Cash and bank balances I3 2,269,901 1,806,341 63,984 44,322
19,159,628 15,474, 64 1,176,541 625923
Total Assets 20,392,588 16,338 210 7,570,776 6,1 06,589
EQUITY
Attributable to equity
holder of the Company
Share capital 16 1,420 998 1,420 9038 1,420.008 1,429 908
(Accumulated losses)h/Retained
eamings (O70,006)  (2,010,395) 270,575 188,932
{rher reserve 17 (313,505) (313,505) - =
Foreign currency translation
reserve (L17,148) (46,852) - -
Total Equity 29,249 (941,254) 1,700,573 1,618,930

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial statements
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SPBED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

{Incorporated in Singapore)
AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Group Company
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
LIsS L Us% LSS
LIABILITIES
Mon-Current Liabilities
Lease habilites ! nance lease
liabiliries 23 401, 160 28,106 -
Amount due to a related party 18 67,454 10,615 - -
Borrowings 9 2,121,932 7,581,917 2,190,714 1.036,689
0 500, 546 7,740,638 2. 100,714 3.036,68%
Current Linbilitics
MMembers” savinps deposiis 20 3,121,750 2,709 712 - .
Other payables 21 17,843 503,561 75.786 [ 1H),943
Bank overdrafis i) 1,611,426 [.803,206 N 5
Leasze liabilities ¢ finance lease
liabilitics 23 292 53] Td.692 - -
Borrowings 19 5437420 4.258,875 3,603,703 1,350,027
Provision for taxation 192,133 98,680 - -
11,273,093 0. 538 826 3679 480 [, 450,970
Total Liabilities 20,863 639 17,279,464 5870203 4 487 639
Total Equity and Liabilities 200,892 888 [5,338.210 7,570,776 G, 106,580

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatements
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Fareizn
currency
Share Accumulated Cther translation
Uss L5E Uss LI5% LI5%
Group
Balapce as al 1 Janwary 2019 1.42% 998 (2,010 845) (313,505) (26, 852) (341,254
Mt profit for the year - L, 00, 700 - - L0490, 799
Oither comprehensive lods . - - (70,296) (70,296
Toval comprehensive biveonme . 1,040,790 - (70, 256] 270,503
Balonce as at 31 December 2010 | 429098 (970,094) 313505)  (117,148) 29,249
Balance as at 1 January 2018 1,429,908 (2.627,318) (313,505 (L46.968)  (1.657.793)
Met profit for the year : 616,423 : : 616,423
Diler comprehensive income - - - 100,116 100,115
Total comprehensive incoms - 616,423 - o0 116 716,539
Balance as nf 31 Decomber 2018 1420 998 (2,010,805 (313,505} (44,852} (941,254

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

1



SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Share Retained
capital carnings Total
LIss Lrss Uss

Company
Balance as at 1 January 2019 1,425 955 188,932 [ 618,930
Net profit for the year B1,643 81,643
Other comprehensive income - - 2
Total comprebensive income = Bl.543 B1.643
Balance as at 31 December 2019 1,420,908 270,575 1,700,573
Balanee as at 1 .January 2018 | 420 508 181,753 1,511,741
Met profil for the year - 7,179 7.179
Other comprehensive income Z ¥ =
Total comprehensive income 7179 7,179
Balance as at 31 December 2018 1,429,998 188,032 1,618,930

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements




SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorpoerated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Groip
2019 2018
uss Lss
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before income tax 1,308,347 33,510
Adjustments For:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 317,226 159,632
Interest expensa (including amortisation of discount) 1,320,647 1,162,055
Imtersst expense on lease liabilities 532372 -
Interest income (5475,944) (4.954.57D)
Unrealised foreipn exchange loss £.665 67883
Allowance for loans losses 163,014 228,350
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (6,849 (641

Orperating cash inflows before working capital changes
Changes in operaling assets and liahilities:

(2,311,622)

(2,473,783)

Loans portfolio (3,778,254)  (2,204,594)
Chher receivables 27,309 (105,160)
Members' savings deposits 405,220 478,008
Oiber payables 131,514 73,305
Met cash used in operations (5,525,733)  {4.232 228)
Income tax paid {165,960) (238,218)
Intersst received 5475 044 4,954,572
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (215,749) 484,128
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 9,921 2225
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (231,532) (109,788)
Increase in other investmeent (Mote 14) (232 256) <
Net cash used in investing activities (453.867) (107,563)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from bormowings 6,200,202 1,690 435
Fepayment of bormowings (3,153,523} (3,751,91E)
Primcipal payment of lease liabilities {206,134} (64,475)
{Decrease)Increase in bank overdrafts and fixed deposits pledged for

hank overdrafis (193.0350) 656,495
Interest paid (1,500,336} (1.286,608)
(Increase)/Decrease in amount restricted to members” savings deposils (16,897 9,743
Met cash generated from/{used in) financing activities 1,124,962 (737327
Net incrense/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 455344 (360,762)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 01,780 1,257,810
Currency realignment {9.B63) 4,732
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear (Note 15) 1,347,263 901,780

The sccompanying notes form an [ntegral part of these financial statements
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SPFBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

{(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Profif before income tay

Adjustments for:

Interest expense

Interest income

Lrnrealised foreign exchange gain

Operating cash inflows before working capital changes

Changes in operaling assets and liabilitics:
{Hhes receivables

Chher payables

Met cash generated from operations

[ncome tax paid

[nterest received

Net cash generated from operating nctivitics

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Amount due from subsidiaries
MNet cash (nsed in)/generated from Investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activitics

FProceeds from bormmowings

Fepavment of bormowings

Interese paid

Net cash generated fromd{nsed in) financing activities

Met increase/(decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear {Note 15)

Company

2018 2018

LISs USS
81,747 11.857
395,162 363,190
{251,352) (207,235)
(13,562} (19,950)
200 695 147 842
(M, 71T {778)
(25,157} 51,495
113,821 198,560
(104 {4,678}
181,044 244,516
34,766 438,398

{1,294,185) 669 647

{1,294, 385) a69,647
2,525,985 650, 00K

(1.404,158)  (1441,503)
(412,545) (457,444)
1009281 (1,248,947

e B

19,662 (140,902)
44,322 185,224
63,084 14,322

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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SPFED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBSIMARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
slatements.

1 Genernl Information

SPBD Microlinance Holdings (Singapore) Pie. Lid. (the “Company™) is a private limited company,
domiciled and incorporated in Singapore. The Company's registered office and place of business is
located at | Goldhill Plaza, #03-39 Podium Block, Singapore 308899,

The principal activities of the Company are that of investment holding and provision of services.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial vear.
The principal activities of subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 11.

The Company’s immediste and ultimate holding company is SPBD Microfinance Holdings
(Delaware) LL.C. (incorporated in the United States of America). The Company’s ultimate
controlling shareholder is Mr. Gregory Francis Casagrande.

The financial statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 are approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on the date of the Directors’
Stalement,

2 Significant Accounting Policies
(i) Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the fnancial stalements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50
and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (FRSg). These financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The prepamation of financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, It also requires the usc of
eertain erfical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and cstimates arc significant to the financial
slatements are disclosed in Note 3.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except that
in the current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised standards which are
relevant to the Giroup and are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or afler | January
2019. Except for the adoption of FRS 116 Leaves described below, the adoption of these new and
revised standards did not have any material effect on the financial performance or financial position
of the Group and Company.

4



SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) FTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
[a) Basis of Preparation {cont’d)
Adoption of FES 116 Leases

FRS 116 sels out a revised framework for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and replaces FRS |7 Leqses, INT FRS 104 Desermining whedher an Arvangement contains
i Lease, INT FRS 15 Operaring Leases-Incentives and INT FRS 27 Eveluating the Substance of
Fransactions frvolving the Legal Form of o Leave,

FRS 116 requires lessees fo recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a
terrn of more than 12 months, except where the underlying assel is of low valuee. The right-of-use
assels are depreciated and interest expense is recognised on the lease liability, Lease incentives (e.g
rent-free period) are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of-use asseis and lease
liabilities. Right-of-use asseis are tested for impairment in aceordance with FRS 36 fmpaiment of
Assers. The aceounting requirements for lessors have nol been changed substantially, and continue
to be based on classification as operating and finanee leases. Disclosure requirements have been
enhanced for both lessors and lessees.

On 1 January 2019, the Group has applicd a modified retrospective approach that does not restate
comparative infonmation, but recognises the cumulative effiect of initially applying FRS 116 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings on | January 2019, The Group elected »
practical expedient offered by FRS 116, exempting the Group from having to reassess whether pre-
existing conlracts containg a lease.

The Group hag, on a lease-by-lease basis:

« applied a single discount rate 10 & ponfolio of leases with reasonebly similar characteristics:

* relied on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an altemative to performing an
mpairment revicw,

e excluded initial direct costs in the measuremen: of the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

*  used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a [ease tenm of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the
lease payments associated with these |eases a3 an expense on a straight-line bagis over the lease
term

There are no significant changes to the accounting by the Group as a lessor.

15



SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
{a) Basiz of Preparation [comt’d)
Adoption of FRS 116 Lenses (conld)

For leases previously classified as operating leases, the Group chose o measure its right-ofuse
assels al a carrving amount as if FRS 116 had been applied since the commencement of the lease
but discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at | January 2019, The Group recognised its
lease liabilities by discounting the remaining le:nse payments as at 1 January 2019 using the
imcremental borrowing rate for each individual lease or, if applicable, the incremental borrowing
rate for each portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics. The difference between the
carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and lease labilides as at 1 January 2019 iz adjusted
directly te opening retained eamings. Comparalive information is not restated.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the carmying amount of the leased assets and
finance lease liabilities as at | January 2019 are determined as the carrying amount of the right-of-
se pssels and lease liabilities.

On | January 2019, the Group recognised right-of-use assets of USS461,942 and lease liabilities of
US3461,942.

When measuring lease liabilities, the Group discounted lease pavments using the incremental
borrowing rate al 1 January 2019. The weighted-average rate applied is approximately 8 50% per
AL,

The difference between the operating lease commitments disclosed applying FRS 17 m the Group's
financial statements as at 31 December 2018 and the lease liabilities recognised in the statements of
financial position asat 1 January 2019 is presented below:;

LIss
Operating leage commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 420,873
Less: Commitments relating to shorl-term leases (193,480}
Add: Extengion options reasonably certain 10 be exercised 274,601
Discounted wsing the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 (40,052)
Discounted operating lease commitments as at 1 January 2019 461,942
Add: Finance lease liabilities as at 31 December 2018 162,798

Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 624,740

The adoption of FRS 116 does not have significant impact on the fnancial performance and
financial position of the Company.
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
E Basis of Preparation {cont'd)

ddoption of NewRevised FRS which are not vel effective

Al the date of authonsation of the financial statements, the Group has not adopted the following
new or revised FR3s that have been issued and which are relevant to the Group but will only be
effective for the Group for the anmual periods heginning on or afler 1 January 2020, management is
in the process to assess Lhe impact of these new standapds on the financial performance or financial
positon of the Group.

] Amendments to FRS 103
Business Combination: Definition of a business

The amendments confirm that a business must include inputs and & process. The amendments also
clarify that the process must be substantive, and the inputs and process must significantly contribute
to creating outputs. The revised definition of & business focuses on goods and services provided to
customers and other income from ordinary activities, rather than on providing dividends or other
economuc benefits directly 10 investors or lowering costs. A new optional test is available to assess
whether a business has been acguired, when the valuc assets acquired is concentrated in a single
asscl or group of sintlar assets.

" Amendments 1o FRS | and FRS 8
Presentetion of Financial Statements and Accounting Polictes, Changes in dccounting
Extimicifes ond Erroes: Delnition of Malenal

The amendments refing the delinition of “material”, provide guidance on ts application, and align
the definitions used across FRSs. Based on the amendments, information is material if omitting,
musstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general-purpose financial statemnents make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Amendments to FRS Financial Instruments, FRS 39
Financial Instruments: Recopnition und Measirement and FRS 107 Financial Inseruments:
Diselosures

The amendments provide temporary relief 1o allow hedge accounting to continue for certain hedges
during the period of cerain hedges during the period of uncertainty before replacement of an
existing Interbank Offered Rate benchmark (IBOR) with an altemative nearly Risk Free Rates
(RFRs). The amendments are mandatory for all hedging relationships directly affected by the [BOR
reform, Companies are required 1o assume that the interest rate benchmark that is the subject of &
hedge of intercst rate risk is unaltered by the reforms.
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Significant Accounting Policies [cont™d)
L Croing Concern

In the preparation of the Gnancial statements, the direciors of the Company believe that the use of
the going concern assumption is appropriate after taking into consideration the following faciors:

(n Management has prepared o cash flow forecast and is of the view that the Group will have
sufficient cash resources o satisfy its working capital requirements and 1o meet its
obligations as and when they fall due; and

()  The immediate and ultimate holding company has indicated its intention to provide
continuing fnancial support to enable the Group to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due.

In the event the Group is unable 10 conlinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the
Group may be unable to discharge ils liabilities in the ordinary course of business and adjustments
may have to be made to reflect ihe situation that assets may need to be realised other than in the
ordinary course of business and at amounts which could differ from the amounts at which they are
currently recorded in the statement of financial pesition. In addition, the Group may have 1o provide
for further Liabilities which may arise, and to reclassily non-current assets and non-current liabilities
s ¢urrent assets and current liahilities respectively. No such adjustments have been made to these
Mnancial statements.

() Currency Translation
Funcilonal and presenlation currency

The individual financial statements of each growp entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial stalements, the results and financial position of each group entity are
expressed in United States Dollar (“USS™), which is the functional currency of the Company and
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

Transerctions e herlamoes

Transactions in a currency other than the functional cumency (“foreign currency™) are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Currency transiation gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the franslation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at yvear-end
exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historieal cost in a foreign currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non-monetary iterns that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont™d)
() Currency Translation (cont™d)
Franslation of Group entities' financial stetements

The results and financial position of all the group entities {none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liahilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

- Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless the average is not 2
reasomable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive mcome and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. These currency translation
differences are reclassified to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal (ie. foss of
contraly of the enlity giving rise to such rescrve.

() Giroup Accouniing

ubsidiar;
Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group contrels an entity when
the Group is exposed (o, or has rights 1o, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
trom the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
on which control ceases,

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting nights of an investee, it has power over the
mvestes when the voring rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investez unilaterally, The Company considers zll relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Company’s voling rights in an investee are sufficient o give power,
meluding:

. the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

L potential voting rights held by the Company, other voie holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
i) Group Accounting (cont’d)
Bubsidiaries (cont'd)

Consolidaiion (cont’d)

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the lime that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous sharcholder’s meetings.

In preparing the consolidated Gnancial statements; transactions, balances and unrezbised gams on
transactions between group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are
considered an impairmenl indicator of the asset transferred. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the
same reporting date as the Company, Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary 10 ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

MNon-controlling - interests are that part of the net resulis of operations and of nel assets of a
subsidiary attributable o the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity
holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position.

Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controlling interests based on their respective
iilerests in a subsidiary, even if this resulis in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Avguizition of businesses

The acquisition method of sccounting is used 1o account for business combinations by the Group.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of 4 subsidiary comprises the fair value of the
assels lransferred, the lisbilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group., The
consideration transterred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement
and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilitics and contingent liabilities assumed in 2 business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
dare

In husiness combinalions achieved in stages, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in

the acquiree al the date of acquisition either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquires's net 1dentifiable assets,
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(d) Crroup Accounting (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (cont’d)
Acguisition of lusinesses (com'd)

The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling inierest in the
acquiree (if any) is recognised on the acquisition date at fair value, or al the non-controlling
mterest’s proportionate share of the acquiree net identifiable assets.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business
combinations, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the
acquires’s identifiable azsets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill on the consolidated statement of
financial position. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised
as & gain on bargain purchase in profit or loss on (he acquisition date.

Dizpasaly of subsidiavies ar lusinesses

When a change in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control over
the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are derecognised,
Amountd recognised in other comprehensive incone in respect of that entity are also reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained carnings if reguired by a specific standard,

Any refained interest in the entity is remeasured at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the retained investment at the date when control is lost and its fair value is recognised in
profit or Ioss.

(&) Investiments in Subsidiaries

[nvestments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company s
statement of financial position. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investments is taken to profit or loss.

if) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the

amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquirce and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair valoe of the net identifiable assets acouired.

2]



SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Significant Accounting Policies (cont™d)
{0 Goodwill (cont’d)

Subsequently, goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impainment annually and whenever there is an indication that the goodwill may be
impaired. If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and lishilities exceeds
the consideration transferred and the non-controlling interest in the acquiree, the Group will
reassess whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and any
excess thereafter is recognised as an income immediately,

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
profit-and loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the scquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assels and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the [unctional currency of the
forcign operations and translated in accordance with the aceounting policy set out in Mote 2(c).

(gl Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and sccumulated
impairment losses. Cost represents all costs that are directly attributable 1o bringing the assel to its
working location and condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is caloulated on straight line basis 1o write off the cost of the property, plant and
equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method.
The estimated uscful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end,
with effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The antwal rates have
been taken as follows:;

Leaschold improvements - 2o 20 vears
Furniture and fixtures = 2o 8 years
Office equipment « 208 years
Computer equipment and peripherals - 2 to § years
Motor vehicles = 2103 yvears
Software and electronics system - 3104 years

The uselul lives of property, plant and equipment and their respective residual values at the end of
eatch reporting period are reviewed and, where appropriate, adjusted. The adjustments, if any, are
taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefils are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an ilem of property, plant and equipment is deterimined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the camrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
{h) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
fi} Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impainment anmually and whenever there is an indication that the goodwill
may be impained.

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating-units (“CGU™) expected to benelit from synergics arising from the business
combination.

An impaimment boss is recognised when the carying amount of a CGU, including the goodwill,
exceeds the recoverable amount of the CGU. Recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of the
COL s fair value less cost to 52l and value-in-use.

The total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carmrying amount of goodwill
allocated 1o the CGU and then o the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of cach asset in the OGLL

An impairment loss on goodwill is recognised as an expense and is not reversed in a subzequent
period.

fa) Froperty, Plant and Equipment
fievestmenis i Subsiciuries

Property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying amount of an asset may not
be recoverable. 1f such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and value in use) of the asset is estimated to determine the amount of impairment
loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset docs not generate cash fows that are largely independent of those from other
assels. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
(*CGU™) 1o which the asset belongs, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current markel
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated o be less than its carryving amount, the

carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced (o its recoverable amount. The differeice between
the camrying amount and recoverahle amount is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss.

23



SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20149

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
thy  Impairment of Non-Financial Asscts (cont'd)

fii) Propersy, Plant and Eguipment
Investmants in Substdiaries (cont’d)

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the assets” recoverable amount since the Jast impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount docs
nol excesd the canying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, A
reversal of impaimment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(i} Financial Assets

Classification and measurcment

The Group classifies its financial assets as those to be measured a1 amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Group™s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual termns of the cash flows. The Group reclassifies debt investmentis when and only when
ite business model for managing those assets changes.

fnitial Recognirion

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or Joss (FVPL), transaction costs that are divectly
attributable 1o the acquisitton of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried al
FVPL are expensed in profil or loss.

Financial assets measured al amortised costs are presented as “loans portfolio™, “other receivahbles
(excluding prepayment)”, “amount due from sabsidiaries™ and “cash and bank balances™ on the
staternent of financial pozition.

Suhveguent Megsurenens

Debt instruments - Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments mainly comprise of “loans portfolio”, “other receivables (excluding prepayment)”,
“amount due from subsidiaries” and “cash and bank balances™. Subsequent measurement of deb

instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group's debt instrumenis are classified in the amortised cost

calepary.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont"d)
(1) Financial Assets (ool d)

Classification and measurgment (cont d)

Suhzeguent Measurenen (cont™d)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash fows represent solely
piayments of pnncipal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A sain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not pant of a hedging relationship
15 recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. For debt instrument that is
measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging refationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of these assets and are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss,

Impaintent

The impeirment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant incresse in
credit risk.

The Group assesses on o forward looking bagis the expected credit loszes associsted with financial
asgels measured al amortised costs.

Loss allowances of the Group are measured on cither of the following bases:

* |2-month expected credit losses — represents the expected credit losses that result from
default cvents that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or for a
shorier period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months); or

» Lifetime expected credit losses — represents the expected eredit losses that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument or contract asset.

General approech
The Group applies the general approach to provide for expected credit losses on loans portfolic and

all other receivables, which requires the loss allowance 1o be measured at an amount equal to 12-
mionth expected credit losses at initial recognition
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
(i) Finaneial Asszets (cont’d)
Impairment (cont’d)

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When ¢redit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal o lifetime expected credit losses.
[n assessing whether the credit nsk of a financial asset has increased significanily since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including the
Crroup’s historical expérience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effon., Forward-looking information considered includes the Riture prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s deblors operate, obiained from economic expert reports, financial analysis,
governmental bodies, and other similar orpanisations, as well a5 consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Group's core opertions.

If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such thal there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, foss allowance is measured at an amount equal 1o 12-month expected credit
lozges.

The Group considers the following as constituling an event of default for internal credit risk
mnagement purposes &s historical experience indicates that a financial asset to be in default when:

. the borrower is unlikely 1o pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held): or
L the financial asset 15 more than 90 days past due,

The maximmem period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed 1o credit risk.

Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the Grancial asset have occurred. At each reporting date, the Ciroup
assesses whether financial assets carried al amortised cost are credit-impaired.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
(i) Financial Assets (cont'd)

Impaioment (cont’d)

Evidence that a financial assel is credit-impaired includes the ohservable data about the following
avents:
= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
« 3 breach of contract such as a default or past due;
®  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
tinancial difficulty, having granted fo the borrower or a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not other consider (e.g. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider otherwise);
* it is becoming probable that the bormower will cnier bankruptey or other financial
reormamsation; or
= the dizappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured at the, present value of all cash shortfalls {ie. the difference between the eash flows due
1o the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
ECLs are discounted al the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the COUMiErpany is
n scvere financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptey proceedings, o in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two vears past due, whichever ocours sooner,
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into aceount legal advice where appropriate. Any recoverics made are
recognised in profit or loss,

Recogmtion and de- it
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when the Group becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the mstruments. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset,
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

(i) Financial Aszets (cont'd)

Recosnition and de-recognilion (cont'd)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual righis 10 the cash flows from
the assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewwards of
ownership of the asset 10 another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantislly all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the assel and an associated liability for amounts it may have 1o
pay. If the Group retaims substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues lo recognise the financial asset and also recogmises a
collateralized borrowing for the procesds received.

On derecopnition of a financial asset measured al amortised cost, the difference between the assel's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss,

)] Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statemen, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
and hank balances less pledgedirestricted bank balances with fnancial institutions, which are
subject 10 an insignificant risk of change in value.

(k) Financial Liahilities

Financial liabilities are recopnised on the statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contraciual provision of the financial instrumems, Financial labilities are included in
“1otal lrabiiities (excluding provision for taxation and life insurance provision)™ on the statement of
financial position.

Finanecial liabilities are recognised mitially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attnibutable to the acquisition or issuance. Subsequent to initial recognition, all fnancial liabilities
are measured al amornised cost using the effective interest method, except for dertvatives, which are
measured at fair value.

A financial lisbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished, The
difference between the carrying ameunt of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profil or loss,

Financial liabilitics of the Group are presented as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd)
3] Financial Ligbilities (cont'd)

Beraniigs

Borrowings are initially measured at fair velue, net of transection costs and are subsequently
measured at amorised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recornised on
an effective vield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost af 3 financial limhility
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the [nancial liability,
or, where appropriale, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognilion.

(1) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, eonstruction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended wse or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time s ihe assets arc
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profil or loss in the period using the effective interest
method in which they are incurred.

) Financial Guaraniess

The Company has issued corporate guarantees 1o banks for bank bomrowings of its subsidiaries,
These guarantess are financial puarantess as they require the Company to reimburse the banks if the
subsidiaries fail 1o make principal or interest payments when due in sccordance with the terms of
their borrowings.

Financtal guarantee contracis are recognised as a financial liability at the time the EeAranies s
izsued. Financial guarantecs are medsured initially at their fair values &nd, if not designated as st
FVPL and do not arise from a transfer of a financial asses, are subsequently measured at the higher
of:

- the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with expected credit loss model
under FRS 109,

- the amount initially recognised less, where sppropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordanee with the principles of FRS 113,
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Slignificant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

{m) Financial Guarantees (cont'd)

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Expected credit losses
are measured for financial guarantees issued as the expecied payments to reimburse the holder less
amy amounts that the Company expects to recover, Loss allowances for expected credit losses for
financial guaranices issued are presented in the Company’s statement of financial position as
“Borrowings”,

Intra-group transactions with regards to the financial guarantees are eliminated on consolidation,

(1) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of
new ordinary shares are deducted against the share capital account,

(o) Preference Share Capital

Preference shares are classified as equity as it is redeemable only at the Company’s option and any
dividend i5 discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognised as distributions within equity.

(gl Revenoe Becognilion
Revenue 15 recognised to the extent 1t is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and it can be measured reliably and also after obtaining reasonable assurance about its

collectability. Revenue from rendering services is recognised upon delivery of services o the
customers.

Maragenent and Professionl Serice inceme

Management and professional service income are recognised overtime in the period when the
services are rendered.

Inferest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Develapment fee

The Group charges certain percentage of 1% to 3% of principal loan amount which is used to cover

the ¢ost of training members, loan evaleation and monitoring. This fee is deducted from the loan
proceeds, and is recognised over-time in the period when the services are rendered,
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
{p) Revenue Recognition (cont"d)

Lonin security jfee

The Group charges and withholds 1% to 2% as an insurance on the principal loan amount plos
interest issued to the borrowing members as security in case of death of the borrowing member

before full payment of their loans, The loan securily fee is recopnised as income over-time when
earmed.

Dl henelii foe

The Group offers a Death Benefit Product to help the families of the Group®s members to reduce
the burden of bereavement and funeral expenses when a borrowing member dies by charging a
Death Benefit fee during disbursement of the principal loan amount, The fee is recognised at a point
in time a8 income when camed.

Savig withdrawal fee

A fee is charged by the Group to its members when they make withdrawals rom their savings
account and is recognised at a point in time upon the withdrawals,

Membership fee

In South Pacific Business Development Microfinance (Fiji) (Ltd), 3 membership fee is charged 1o
the members for entitlements given by the Group, and hence membership fees is non-refundable and
recognised as income over-time over the duration of the membership.

Craant ineome

Granl income is recognised at @ point in time when there is:
i} Entitlement to the gramn;
it} Virtual certainty that it will be recelved; and
it} Sufficient measurability of the amount.

(1) Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plan

Defined contributions are recognised as an expense in the same period as the employment that gives
rise to the contnbution. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been pand.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(q) Emplovee Benefits (contd)

Emploves feave ensitlenens

Mo provision has been made for employee's annual leave entitlements as generally any unconsumed
annual leave not utilised will be forfieited,

[t Leases (sccounting for leases from | January 2019)

When the Group is the lesses:

Al the meeption of the contract, the Group assesses if the contract containg a lease, A contract
ceilains a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period
of titne in exchange for consideration, Reassessment is only required when the terms and conditions
of (he contract are changed.

The Group recopmised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at the date which the underlving assets
become available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost which comprises the initial
measurement of lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payvments made al or before the
commencement date and lease incentive received, Any initial direct costs that would not have been
mewrred i the lease had nol been obtained are added to the earrying amount of the right-of-use
assels.

Right-of-use assels are subsequently depreciated wsing the straight-line method from the
commencement date 1o the earlier of the end of the useful [ife of the righl-ofuse asset or the end of
the lease term,

Right-of-use assets are presented within “Property, plant and equipment™ in the statements of
financial position.

The initial measurement of lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments
discounted using the implicit rate in the lease, if the mate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group shall use its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payment included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payment), less any lease incentive receivables:

L variable lease payment thal are based on an index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

. amount expected 1o be payable under residual value guarantess;
the exercise price of a purchase option if its reasonably certain to exercise the option; and
payment or penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that oplio.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
{r) Leases (accounting for leases from 1 January 2019) {cont™d)
When the Group iz the lessee: (cont’d)

For contracts that contain both lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates 1he
consideration te each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease and
non-leasc component. The Group has elected to not separate lease and pon-lease component for
property leases and account these as one single lease component,

Lease liabilitics are measured at amortised cost, and are remeasured when:

. there is a change in future lease payments arising from changes in an index or rate:

. there is a change in the Group's assessment of whether it will exercise lesse extension and
termination oplions;

. there 15 a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected 1o be payable under a
residual value puarantee; or

= there is a modification to the lease term.

Where lease liahilities are re-measured, corresponding adjustments are made against the nght-of-use
assets. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets has been reduced to zéro, the adjusiments
are recorded in the consolidated income statement.

The Group has clected to not recognise right-of~use assets and lease linbilities for shor-term leases
that have lease terms of 12 months or lezs and low value leases, except for sub-lease armngements,
Lease payments relating to these leases are expensed 1o consolidated income sialement on a
straight-line bagis over the lease term.

Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or & rate are not included as part of the
measurement and initial recognition of the lease liability. The Group shall recognise those lease
payments in consolidated income siatement in the periods that tripgered those lease payments.

When the Group is the lessor:

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group retains a significant portion of the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases (net of any incentives given 1o the lessees) are recognised in the consolidated
income stilement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent renls are recopnised as
mcome in the consolidated income statement when earned
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Significant Accounting Policies {cont™d)
(s} Leases (accounting for leases up 1o 31 Degember 2018)

When he Group 15 the lessee:

Finanoe leoases

Lease where the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases.

The leased assets and the corresponding lease liabilities (net of Onance charges) under finance
leases are recognized on the stalement of financial position as property, plant and equipment and
finance lease respectively, at the inception of the lease based on the lower of the fair value of the
leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease paymenis,

Each leased payment is apporioned between the finance lease and the reduction of the outstanding
leaze Hability. The finance expense is recognised in profit or loss on 2 basis that reflects a canstant
periodic rate of interest on the Gnance lease lishility.

Ciperating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Paymenis made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised in the profit or loss on & straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required 1o
be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the financial year in which
termination lekes place.

Contingenl rents are recognized as an expense in the profit or loss when incumed. Rental costs
under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
leases.

When the Group is the lessor;

Dperating leases
Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment.

Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given (o the lessees) are recognised in
the profit or loss on a siraight-line basis over the lease temm.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont™d)

(s) Leases (accounting for leases up to 31 December 2018) (cont’d)

When the Group is the lessor: (cont'd)

Operaiing Teoses (cont'd)

[nitial direct costs ineurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging an operating [ease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense in the profit or loss over the
lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Contingent rems are recognised as income in the profit or loss when earned.

(th Income Tax

Current income tax for the current period is recognised af the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the fax authonties, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted and
substantively enacted by reporting date.

Dieferred income tax is provided using the liability methed on all temporary differences at reporting
date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their canrving amounts for financial reporting
PUCPOsEs.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except in respect of
deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unutilised tax credits and tax losses, if it is
ni¥l probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences and carry-forward of unutilised tax credits and tax losses can be utilised.

Unrecopnised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred lax asset to be
Utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured i the lax retes that are expected 1o apply to the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted at reporting date.

{u) Eelated Parties

A related parly is defined as follows:

A related parly is a person or cntity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial
statements (referred to as the “reporting entity™).
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Significant Aceounting Policies (contd)
{u}) Felated Parties (cont™d)

il A person or a close member of that persen’s Tamily is related to a reporting entity if that
person:

i has control or joint control over the reporting entity:

i, has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent
of the reporting entity,

b, A entity 15 related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applics:

i the entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related o the others);

i, ane enlily is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
verture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

iii. both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

iv. ang entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity,
V. the entity is a posl-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either

the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity, If the reporting entity
is isalt such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also refated to the reporting
entity;

i the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

Vi, a person identified in (a) (1) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

vili.  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is & part, provides key management
personnel services to the reporting enlity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements and the application of the Group and Company's accounting
policies, which are described in Note 2 above, requires management 1o make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and linbilities, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. The estimates and
associated assumplions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Uncerainly aboul these ecstimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future
pericds,
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (coni’d)
(a) Critical Accounting Eslimates and Assumptions

The cstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
aftects only that period or in the period of the revision and futere period.

Impairment of invest, cop arhsiliortes

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication
that the investments in subsidiaries are impaired. To determine whether there is any indication of
impairment, the Company considers factors such as the subsidiaries’ financial performance and
financial position, changes in customer demand, consumer tastes and trends, and the overall
eoonomice envicomment,

No impairment losses hes been recognised for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. The carrying amounts of the Company's investments in subsidiaries ag ar the statement of
financial position date are disclosed in Mote 11.

frencrt of eoomadiill

The Group tests goodwill for impairment annually in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in Note 2(h)(i). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units (*CGUS™) have heen
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions. Changes lo the estimates and assumptions will result in changes in the carrying values
of goodwill arising from the acquisition of business. No impairment losses has been recognised for
the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amounit of goodwill is USS407 438 (2018: USS407 438).

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units 1o which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calewlation requires that the
directors estimate the future cash flows expected 1 arise [rom the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Details of the estimation of the value in
useare provided in Note 9,

Provision for expeeted credit fosses of Togng poviflio

The Group caleulates the allowance for expected credit losses for loans portfolio which requires the
loss allowance to be measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses at initial
recognilion
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty {cont'd)
(i) Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions {cont”d)

FProvision for expected credit losses of fogns portfolio (cont™d)

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the eredit risk of a financial instrument has
increased sipnificantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recogmtion, loss allowance is measwred at an amount equal to lifetime expected credil losses,
The Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available withou
undue cost or effort when estimating expected credit losses. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information that i= reazonable and supporiable, including the Group's historical
experience gnd forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes various extermal sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group's core operations.

The Group recognised proviston for expecied credit losses amounting to USS163,014 (2015
US$228,350) in the profit or loss during the current financial year. The carrying amount of the
Group's loan portfolio as at 31 December 2009 was USS16,612,599 (2018: US$13,363,386) as
disclosed in Note 13.

(b Critical Judgemenis in Applying the Group's Accounting Pelicies
Management is of the opinion that there are no significant judgemenis made in the process of

applying the Group and Company's sccounting policies that have a significant risk of Causing a
material adjustment to the camrying amouwnts of assets and linbilities within the next twelve months.

Finanecial Revenue

Croup Company

2013 2018 2019 2018

LI5S USs% 5% LJSs
Type of revenue:
= Development fee 82016 526,716 - £
- [nterest on loans 5475044 4 054 573 251,352 207,255
- Loan security fem 07,550 380,272 - -
= Death benefit foe [ 78,512 168078 - -
= Membership fec 244,781 270,570 - -
= Management income . - 576,000 566,281
= Professional service . e 900K 64,500
= Saving withdrawal fee 147,764 A48 404 - .
- Others 168,928 60,640 - -

7,406,404 6,408 261 BlG,352 835.036
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Financial Revenue (cont™d)

Geographical location:
- Samaon

- Tonga

- Fiji

- Solomon Islands

- Vanuatu

- Bingapore

Other Incomeo

Thiz is arrived sl after credifing:

Commission income

Grant and donation received

Cirant ingome

Crain on dizposal of property,
plant and equipment

Financial booklet

Cuaraniee foe

Processing fee income

Recovery of loan previously
written off

Eental income under operating
fcase

Training programs

Miscellaneous income

Foreign exchange gain, net

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Uss Us% Uss Uss
2,485,695 2,108,541 = 2
1,763,333 1.631.857 . 4
1,719,871 1,396,557 - -
677,459 T4, 4335 o x
733,024 567,871 = ;
; : §36,352 838,036
T 406,404 404,261 836,352 838,036
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
uss Uss LB LSS
27,242 200,344 i
- 71,431 )
163 843 - -
849 641 - .
13 166 47 948 - .
= = 34,330 18,640
= = &40 .
- 10,900 - .
18,542 18,177 - :
02,5945 - -
45800 E: E E
- 3 62.454 24.513
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Financial Expenses

Ingurance fee and related claimis

Interest on borrowings

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on members” savings
deposils

Allowance for loans losses

Amartisation of discount (Nate 19)

Profit before Income Tax

This is amived al alter charging:

Admin and managenenl fes

Defined contribution plans

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and nght-of-use
nssets

Foreign exchange difference, net

Rental expenses (low-value and
short-term leases)

Renial expenses under operating
lease

Legal and professional fees

Travelling and transportation

Salaries and wages

Croup Company
2018 2018 2019 2018
LSS LSS LSS LIS
160,551 140,472 - -
1,220,850 1,113,142 395,162 363,190
53,272 - - -
34,859 27,371 . -
163,014 228,350 - -
64,918 21,542 - -
16974584 1,530,377 395,162 363,190
Group Company
=012 2018 2019 2018
LSS 5§ 3 Uss
361 488 525,142 264,000 264,000
103,619 Q1,455 - -
317,226 189,612 -
37.044 21.034 - X
77,514 = . i
- 257,361 = -
326,466 207,193 27602 27,743
489 585 579,755 2316 7,898
1 452,650 | 71,830 54,000 63,710
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Income Tax Expense

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
LIS% LISE LISE Uss
[ncome tax expense on results for
the vear conzisis of:
Current income tax
- GUITEN year 267 444 212,409 . .
= under provision in prior year 194 4678 104 4,678
267,548 217,087 104 4 678

Income tax varied from the amount of income tax determined by applying the Singapore income tax
rate of 17% (2018: 17%) to profit before income 14x as a result of the following differences:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
LIS LISS S8 UUss
Profit before taxation 1,308,347 33,510 81,747 11,857
Income tax at 17% 222419 141,697 13,897 2016
Non-deductible expenses 3304 50,179 - 15,890
Mon-taxahle income (30,079) (32,003 (11,970) {7,183}
Statutory tax exemplion {1,666) {9,041} {1,666) {9.041)
Corporate tax rebate (261} {1,682} (261) (1.682)
Effect of higher tax rate in other
Lountry 53479 T8, 269 . =
Utilisation of deferred tax assets
nol recopgnise (63,924) {42.101)
Lhrecognised deferred tax assets 54,082 27181 . =
Under provision in prior vear 104 4,678 104 4,678
267,548 217,087 104 4,678

The corporale income tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated are caleulaied at the tax
ratez applicable in the country in which the subsidiaries are accessible for tax, based on existing
legislations, interpretations and practices in respect thereol
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Income Tax Expense (cont’d)

208 2018
%0 %5

Tax rate applicable to the Company

Singapore 17 17
Tax rate applicable to the Subsidiaries

Independent State of Samoa 27 27
Kingdom of Tonga 75 15
Fepublic of Fii n 1]
Solomon [slands an 30
Eepublic of Vanuatu 1) ]

As at the reporting date, the Group has unutilised fax losses amounting to approximately
LIS§1.522,000 (2018: US%$2,214,000) available for offsetting against filure taxable income. The
related tax benefits of approximately USS505,000 {2018: USS602,000) arising from these unutilised
tax losses have not been recognised in the financial statements as there is no reasonable certainty of
their realisation in the future periods, in acoordance with the accounting policy as stated in Note 2(1)
to the financial statements. The availability of the unabsorbed tax losses for set off azainst future
laxable income is subject 1o the tax regulations of the respective couniries in which the Group
companies are incorporated and approval by the relevant tax authorities.

The breakdown of unuatilised tax loszes i as follows:

Ciroup Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LISS Us3 53 Ls%
Expiry dates
31 December 2019 - &1, 000 - 4
31 December 2030 522,000 548,000 - -
31 December 2021 485,000 507,000 - .
31 Decernber 2022 445,000 462,000 - -
31 December 2023 F21,000 9,000 - -
31 Drecernber 2024 29, 000 - - -

1,822 000 2 214,000 . =
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Croodwill
Group
2019 2018
Uss U556
The goodwill is made up as follows:
Purchazed goodwill 407,438 407 438

Purchased goodwill arose from the excess of purchase price paid by a subsidiary in acquiring a
business since its formation in Jansary 2000, representing the reputation established with clients,
lenders, the government of Samoa and all other stakeholders.

Goodwill is assessed for impairment during the end of cach financial year. An impaiment loss is
the amount by which the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds {1s recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on value-in-use caleulations. Cazh flow
projections used in these calculations were based on the financial budgets approved by management
covering a one-year period. Cash flows from one to five vear period were extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates of 10% (2018: 10%) based on management’s best estimates from market
industry. A discount factor of §.89% (2018: 7.59%) per annum was applied in the value in use
caloulations.

Sensirivity analysts
If the management's estimated growth rate used in the value in use caleulation for the CGU is

decreased by 5% (2018; 5%), the recoverable amount of the cash-generating wnit is still in excess
of itz carrving amount.
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBRSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Investments in Subsidinries

Unquoted shares, al cost

Crdinary shaves

Balance as at beginning and end of the financial year

Preference shares

Balance as at beginning of the financial vear

Balance as at end of the financial year

Details of the subsidiary companies are as follows:

Mames of subsidiaries,
couniry of mconporation and
place of brsingss

soath Pacitic Business
Development Microfinancs
Ltd. {"5PBI Toaga™) ™
{Kingdom of Tomga)

SPBD Microfimance { Samoa)
Lid. ("SPBD Samoa™ ™
(Independent State of Samoa)

South Pacific Busmess
Development Microfinance
(Fija} Led {"SPBD Fija"™)y '™
(Republic of Fiji)

Principal activin

Provizioaal |T.11.1:n|.':|.1|
sETVices, Iraiking, o
gomg guidonees and
e valion I
economically
dizadvaniaged people

Provizsionof financial
SErVIEES, [FAinmE, on-
going guidance and
motivatienio
economisally

disachvaniaged people

Provision of Gieancial
services, training, on-
goimg gurdance and
mativaton o
eoonoiically
dizadvontaged people

6

Company
2019 2018
(BEL] LIS%
56T 248 567,208
L3037 1,320,371
1.387,669 1,847.669
% of equity Costof
beld by the Company mvesiment
2019 a8 2013 2018
- Yo LS5 | BLot
TG 10 TER 9 188 504
] 1o 400 44,000
106 1K) 1463318 1,463,313
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGATORE) PTE. LTD.

{(Incorporated in Singapore)
ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Investments in Subsidiaries (com'd)

Mame of subsidiaries,

cowHry of iomporation and %o of exquity
place of business Principal activities held by the Company
2149 J01R
Yo T
South Pacafic Business Provision of feancial 10y oo

Development Microfinance services, Rining, on-
(Solomon Eslands) Limited going guidance and

[“SPBID Solomon™) = o tivation Lo
[Belomon [stancs) economically
disadvantaged people
SPBRD Microfinance Provisionof financinl 100 1030
(Vanuate) Ll (“SPRD BErViCes, raining, on-
Wannat™) * jpoing guidance and
{Fepublic of Vamuata) medvatinnto
cooasmmically
disadvantaged people

B Andited by JK Chartered Aceountants

M Andited by BDO Chartered Acceuniants

= Apdited by BDO Chartered Accoumntants

e Asdited by Morris & Sojnocki, Chartered Accountants
W Audited by Low Partners, Chartered Accountants

Com af
investment
2019 2018
Lss LISE

135447 L5 447

50,000 30,000

L R8T 660 1 RE7 6469

In 2014, the Company converted certain loans from subsidiaries amounting to USS1,543,123 into
investment in the subsidiaries’ preference shares. The preference shares have the following rights

and subject (o the following conditions;

(&) Redeemable at par value any time after 5 years from date of issue and as determined and

deemed appropriate by the directors of the subsidiaries;

(b Entitled to dividends not exceeding 6% per annum depending on the profitability and
linaneial position of the subsidiaries, and prior consent of certain financial institutions
which the subsidiary obtained finance and given covenant regarding dividends;

(cl Carry similar voling rights as that of ordinary shareholder; and

[} Do ot enititle holder to any additional seats on the board of the subsidianes.

47
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

{Incorporated in Singapore)
ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Amount due from Subsidiaries

Company

2019 2018

Uss USE
Loan receivables A 40805 4,154,527
Ohher recervables 141167 17,823
5.609.108 4,172,350
Less: Current portion _{1,102,632) (579,353)
Maon-current portion 4,506,566 3.592 997

The loan receivables are unsecured and carries an interest rate of 2% to 11% {2018: 2% to 11%) per
anmum. The final repayments of the loans range from 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2028

(2018: 31 March 2019 1o 31 December 2028),

The other receivables are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and pavable on demand.

Loans Portfolio

Group

2018 2018

USsE Uss
Balance at beginning of the year 13,363,386 11,610,869
Loans dishursement during the yvear 28,190,317 22,245,062
Loans repayment during the vear (24.412318)  (20,041,366)
Write-offs during the year (54,812 (224,843)
Translation adjustment (230,057 [32.893)
Gross loans portfolio 16,816,516 13,550,729
Less: Allowance for loans losses (203,917) {187.343)
16,612,599 13,363 386

The loans eam interest at the rate ranging from 936 to 27% (2018: 9% to 27%) per annum.

The movement in the allowance for loans losses during the financial year are as follows:

Group

2019 2018

LISs LS
Balance at beginning of the vear 187,343 171,903
Charge to profit or loss 163,014 228.350
Loans written off (144.365) (224,844)
Currency translation adjusiment (2,075) 11,932
Balance at end of the vear 203,917 87 343

48
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Oiher Receivables

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 018

LIss Lss Uss LISE
Current:
Deposits 0,878 41,787 - .
Prepayments B 434 123,800 B.ATO 778
Other receivables 165,766 138,850 1,455 1,470

277128 304,437 0.825 2248

Mon-current:
ther investment 232.256 = - -

Other investment pertains (o the term deposit with Fiji Development Bank for 4 period of 48 months

subject 1o interest at a rate of 4.50% per annum,

Cash and Bank Balances

Giroup Compuny

2019 2018 2019 2018

LISS LSS LUss Uss
Cash on hand 43,229 35319 - i
Cash in banks 862,197 232,107 63,984 44 322
Vodafone M-Paisa account 347,989 2,626 - -
Fixed deposits 1,016,486 935,289 - -
2,269,901 1,806,341 PR 44322

Far the purpose of the presentation of the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents as at

the reporting date comprise the following:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
UsE LSS LUss LSS
Cash and hank balances 2269901 1,806,341 63,984 44 322

Less:

Fixed deposits pledged for
bank overdrafts (Note 22) (585 808) (584,628) -
Restricted to members™ savings

denosits

(3368307 (119,933) =

Cash and cash equivalent 1,347,263 901,780 63,984 44,3722

49
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Cash and Bank Balances {cont™d)

As ar the statement of financial position date, fixed deposits matured within twelve months {2018:
twelve months) from the end of the financial year. Interest on fixed deposits are derived al rates
ranging from 0.10% to 4.25% (2018: 0.10%4 to 3.50%) per annum.

Share Capiial
Group and Company

2019 2018
Mo, of Share Mo. af Share
shares capiial shares capital
I35 Us%
Ordinary shares
Balance at beginning and
end of the vear 1,221,637 7,608 1,221,657 076,698
FPreference shares
Balance at beginning and end
of the year GO0, MO0 453,300 600, (K0 453,300
Total share capital 1,821 637 1,420,093 1,821,637 1429 995

Both classes of shares have no par value. Ordinary shares have one vote each.

The preference shares carry a dividend of 8% per annum, if and when declared by the Board of
Diregtors. The dividend rights are cumulative and the preference sharcholder has no vating rights
utiless dividends declared remains in arrears and unpaid for more than six months afier the due date.
Oiber Beserve

This relates o the difference between the cost of the scquisition and the amounts at which the
acquired assets and liabilities are recorded for a business combination with an entity under common
conteol.

Armount due to a Beloted Party

The amount due (o a related party (non-current portion) is unsegured, non-trade in nature, bears 8%

(2018: B%) interest per annum and is repayable not later than 31 December 2023 (2018 31 March
2020).

i
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Borrowings

Secured loans
Unsecured loans
L.ess: Linamwortised discount

Commercinl loans
Convmercial loans (a)
Commercial loan (b}
Commercial loan {c)
Commercial loan (d)
Commmercial loans (&)
Commercial loan {f)

Term lopans
Term loan (a)
Term loans (h)
Term loans (¢)

Term loans - related party (d)

Term loan {c)

Term loan ()

Term loans (g)

Term loan (h)

Teérm loan (1)

Term loan — uitimate holding
eompany ij )

Term loan (k)

Tatal borrowings
Less: Current portion
Mon-current portion

Croup Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
LSS LUSs LISE USSs
3,732 409 5,502,252 366,531 1099914
8,932,519 6346418 5427880 3286802
(105,576) (7,878} - -
14,559,352 11,840,792 5,794,417 4386 716
366,531 1,099,914 366,531 Losoa9l4
936,245 517215 . -
445,483 157,321 -
3,156,039 2,741,813 = -
828,111 §26,750 - -
= 99,239 - -
3,732,409 5,502,252 366,531 1099914
11,354 15,491 2 -
1,542 Q06 2,059 808 1.542 906 2,059,808
1,635 802 1,418,501 =
1,492,957 I.168,573 BO0.000 630,000
200,237 33,994 200,237 133,994
- 1 96,630 - -
750,730 482 Td4 - 43,000
11,938 16,715 - -
276 425 784 - -
2,670,000 400,000 2,670,000 400,000
124,743 = 124,743 =
B.826,943 6,338,340 5,427 846 3,286,802
14,559,352 11,840,792 5,794,417 4,386,716
(>,437430) (4.258875) (3.603,703)  (1,350,027)
9.121.932 7,281,917 2,190,714 3,036,689

31
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STED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD,
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Borrowings (cont'd)

Movements in unamortised discount on borrowings are as [ollows:

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Liss USss Lss Uss
At the beginning of the yvear 7.878 32,665 - -
Crrant income during the year 163,543 - - -
Amortisation during the year (64,938 (21.542) - -
Currency realignment (1,207} (3,245) : -
Al the end of the year 105,574 T.RTR - -

Commercial loans (1)

These comprise one (2018: two) commercial loans which are secured by guarantee from a related
party for up to USS460,000 (2018: USE035 000} ar 50% of the loan whichever iz lesser and bear
interest rate of 9.5% (2018: 9.5%) per annum. The final repayments of the loans is repayable by 31
March 2020 {2018: range from 31 March 2019 to 21 March 2020).

Commercial |

The loan is secured by guarantee from the Company (Mate 26) and bears an interest mte of 10%
(2018: 10%) per amnum, The final repayment of the loan is due on 30 September 2022 (2014: 31
December 200207,

Commercial loan {c)

The loan 15 secured by a charge over a portien of the subsidiary’s loan porifolio equal to 100% of
the principal balance of the credit facility, and bears an interest rate of 11% (2018: 14%) per
annum, The final repayment of the loan is due on 27 November 2024 (2018: 31 August 201 9).

Commercial loan (d)
The loan i3 secured by a charge over a portion of the subsidiary’s loan portfolio equal 10 150% of

the principal balance of the credit facility, and bears an interest rate of 9.5% (2018: 9.5%) per
annui. The final repayment of the loan is due on 30 September 2022 (2018: 30 September 2022).

Comunercial loans (&)

These comprise three (2018: three) commercial loans which are secured by a charge over & portion
of the subsidiary’s loan porifolio equal to 120% of the principal balance of the credit facility, and
bear interest rates ranging from £.5% to 9% (2018: 8.5% 10 9%) per annum. The final repayments
of the loans range from 31 March 2022 to 30 June 2023 (2018: 31 March 2022 to 30 June 2023).
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Borrewings (cont™d)

Commercial loans (f)
These comprised two commercial loans which were secured by four vehicles and bore inlerest rates

ranging from 9.11% ta 9.65% per annum. The final repayment of the loans was on 25 May 2020,

Term loan {a
The loan is unsecured, invterest free and is repayable on demand.

Teim loans (h)
These comprise four (2018: four) term loans which are unsecured and bear an interest rate of 8%

(2018: 8%) per annum, The final repayments of the loans range from 30 September 2020 o 31
December 2021 {2018: 30 September 2020 to 31 December 2021},

Term loans {c)
These comprise four (2018: four) term loans which are unsecured, interest free and are repayible on
demand.

Term loans (d)

These comprise fourieen (2018: twelve) term loans from the related party which are unsecured and
bear interest rates ranging from 6.5% to 9.5% (2018: 3% to 11.5%) per annum The final
repayments of the loans range from 30 September 2020 to 31 December 2023 (2018 31 March
2019 to 30 Sepiember 2022).

Temm loan (e}

These comprise three (2018: two) tenm loans which are unsecured and bears an interest rate of 5%
(2018: 5%) per annum. The final repayment of the loans is due from 31 December 2022 to 30 June
2023 (201 8: 31 December 2022 to 30 June 2023).

Yerm loan (f)
The loan was unsecured and bore an interest rate of 8.5% per annum, The final repayment of the
loan was on & April 2019,

Term loan (g)

These comprise five (2018: four) term loans which are unsecured and interest free. The final
repayment of the loan is due by 30 June 2020,

Term loan (k)

The loan is unsecured, interest [ree and is repayable on demand,

Term loan (i)
These comprise three (2018: three) term loans which are unsecured and bear an interest rate ranginge

from 1.5% to 5% (2018: 1.5% to 5%) per annum. The final repayment of the loans is due from 30
June 2020 to 30 Junc 2024 (2018: 30 June 2020 ta 30 June 2024).

a3
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SPRD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Borrowings {cont™d)

Tem | il
These comprise ten {1018: three} term loans from the ultimate holding company which are
unsecured and bear an ihlerest rate of 3% (2018: 8%) per annum. The final repayment of the loans
range from 31 March 2020 1o 31 December 2022 (2018: 30 June 2021 1o 31 December 20225,

Temm loan (k)

These comprise six term loans from third parties which are unsecured and bear an interest rate of
6% per annum. The final repayment of the loans range from 31 December 2021 to 31 December
2022

Members' Savings Deposits

Members in these financial statements refer to the Group’s loan portfolio borrowers. The savings
deposits eam interest ai the rate ranging from 1.5% fo 3.0% (2018: 1.5% 1o 3.0%0) per annum and
thes rate may be modified by the Group based on the prevailing interest rates amongst commercial
banks.

Members' savings deposits are recorded as current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

A savings account is required to be esiablished by a borrowing member while availing a loan by
depoziting an initiation deposit amount of USS4 to USE5 (201 8: USE4 to USES). When the [oan has
been processed and approved, the members can regularly deposit and withdraw from their savings
acgount which gets recorded in the members” savings account, Members with a current loan balance
are required to maintain their savings sccount with a minimum required balance.

There it no limit on the amount of money the members can keep in the savings accounts. The
minimum balance thal a member can keep is USS3, Members can withdraw money from their
sAvings account at any time for emergencies, however the savings secount can be closed and fully
withdrawn only after the loan outstanding is fully paid off,

Other Pavables
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Uss LSS Uss Uss
Accreals 357,727 241,872 74,386 0,744
Interest payable 22022 39,254 - .
Life insurance provision 51,753 17472 - -
Cther payablies 176,341 | 54,963 1,401 0,197
17,843 503,561 75,786 100,943
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Bank Overdrafis
Giroup
2019 2018
Lss LI5S
Bank overdrafis 1611 420 1,503, 2%6

Bank overdrafts of the Group are secured by the following:

(i) a standby letter of ¢redit of GBP10,000 or equivalent US513,116 (2018 GBPLOOGO ar
equivalent USE12,690);

(i)  fixed deposits of U'S3585,808 (2018: US$584,628) (Note 15);

(iv)  bank overdraft of US32838,541 (2018; USS856,567) is secured by suarantes from the
Company {Mote 27)

Interest on bank overdrafis ranges from 9.75% to 10.50% (2018: 9.75% to 10.50%%) [FET ANOLITT.

Lease Liahalities
fa) The Group as a lessec
The Group has lease contracts for office premises and motor vehicles. The Group's obligations

under these leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets, The Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

The Group also has certain leases of equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases
with low value. The Group applies the shor-lerm lease and lease of low-value assets recopnition
cxemptions for these leases.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets classified within property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Group
31 Decemnber | January
2019 2019
LISE Liss
Muotor vehicles 00,960 159,589
Office premises 284,166 461,941

Additions of right-of-use assets classified within property, plant and equipment during the financial
year are USS2ET 487. The Group has total cash outflows for leases of USE206,124 in financial year
ended 3| December 2019,
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SPRD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{ Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

23 Lease Liabilities (cont'd)
(a) The Group as a lesses (cont’d)

The amounts recognised in profil or loss are as follows:

2019
Uss
Depreciation of right-of-use assels 212,408
Interest expense on lease liabilides (Note 6) 53272
Lease expense not capitalised in lease liabilities:
- Expense relating to short-term and low-value leases (Note 7) 77514
Tatal amount recognised in profit or loss 343,194

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the financial vear are as follows:

019
rss
Lease habilities:
Current 292 571
Non-current 411,160

ST

The Croup determines the |case term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised.

The Group has some lease contracts that include extension options, These options are negotiated by
maragement Lo provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Giroup s
business needs. The Group included the extension option in the lesse term [or leases of office
premises because of the leasehold improvements made and the significant costs that would arise 1o

replace the assets.
(bl The Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into an operating lease on its motor vehicles. Undiscounted lease payments
from the operating leases to be received after the reporting date are set out in Mote 24. The rental
income from the lease of motor vehicles is disclosed in Note 5.

A
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SPED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

iIncorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Lease Linbilities {contd)

{c) 31 December 2018 - Finance lease liabilities

As al 21 December 2018, the Group leases its motor vehicles under finance leases. The future
mimimum lease payments under finance leases and their present values as al 31 December 2018 are

i folloas:

Amounts payable under finance lease:

Within 1 year
Between | year o 3 vears

Total minimum lease payments
Legs: future finance charge

Present value of minimium lease payments
Less: Amount due for settiement within 12 months
Amount due for settlenent alfter 12 months

Minimum Prezent value
leaze ol sk
pavments lease pavments

2018 2018
LIsE LSk

100,442 74,692

D& 345 B3, 106

|90 28T 163, TO8

{36,489} -

162,798 162,798

{74,692}

HE 106

The finance lease obligations bear interest ranges from 6.5% to 11% per annum,

Finance lease liabilities were reclassified o lease lisbilities on 1 Janoary 2019 arising from the
adoption of FRS 116, The impact of adoption is disclosed in Note 2{a).
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Commitments
(i) Operating Lease Commitments - a3 Lessee

The Group leases its offices space from non-related parties under non-cancellable operating
arrangements, These leases have varying terms and rencwal righis.

Asat 31 December 2018, the future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases
comtracied but not recognised as liabilities, are as follows:
Group

2018
Uss

Within I vear
After 1 year but within 5 vears
Aler 5 years

187,366
232,976
331

420,873
As disclosed in Note 2{a), the Group has adopied FRS 116 on 1 Jangary 2019 These lessge
payments have been recognised as right-of-use asseis and lease liabilities on the statement of
Mnancial position as at 31 December 2019, except for short-term and low-value leases.

(b The Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into an operating lease on its motor vehicles. This non-cancellable lense has
remaining lease term of less than 5 years and with renewal rghts.

Group
2019 2018
Lss 1S3
Within one vear 6,132 18912
In the second to Gfth years inclusive - 3,304
6,132 25,216
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Eelpted Party Transaciions

Related parties refer to the entities controlled by the ultimate controliing sharehalder, Mr. Grepory

Francis Casagrande.

Other than the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following are significant related party transactions entered into by the Group and the Company with

related parties:

Subsidiari

-Guarantee remimneration
-Management income

-Professional fee income

-Interest on loans from the Company
-Processing fee income

Ultimage ' a

~Administrative fees charged to the
Group/Company

-Management fees charged to the
Group/Company

-Dividend paid

=Loans to the Group'Company

=Interest on loans to the Group/Company

Related parties

-Managemen! fees charged 1o the Group
-Loans to the Group'Company

-Interest on loans to the Group/Company

Group Company

019 2018 2019 2018

LSS Uss USs LSS
- - 34,530 18,640
- - a76,000 366,281
- 9,000 644,500
- = 251,352 27,255
8,00 -
(132,000) (132,000} (132,000)  (132,000)
(1320000 (132.000) (132,000) (132,000
2,345,000 400,000 2,345,000 400,000
{78,781} {9,139} {78,781) {%,189)
(297.488)  (261,143) - 3
1,525,933 471,253 890,000 250,000
(66,211) (78,653) 54,685 (47,736)

The key managemenl personnel comprise mainly directors who have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company and the Group.

Other than a nominee director’s fee of USS1 459 (2018: US$1,728), no other remuneration was

paid 1o the directors during the year.
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AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Corporate Guaranteg

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has corporste guarantee amounting to US$1,674, 338 (2018:
U5%1,433,782) issued to bank for a subsidiary’s bank borrowing and bank overdrafi. The fair value
of the corporate puarantee is estimated 1o be insignificant as the subsidiary has the ability to
generate sufficient cash flows from their operations to finance their continuing operations and repay
the bank borrowing.

Capital Manazement

The primary objective of the Group™s eapital management is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern and Lo maintain an optimal capital structere to support its business and maximise
shareholder value. Capital is defined as equity attributable to the equity holders.

The Group manages ils capital structure and makes adjustments o it, in light of changes in
coonomic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment 1o shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue new shares,

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the vear.

In the management of capital nisk, management takes into consideration the net debt-to-equity ratio
a5 well as the Group's working capital requirements. The Group regards equity as capital, and
monilors capital using a net debt-lo-equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debs
is caleulated as total liabilities (excluding provision for taxation) less cash and bank balances. Total
equily compnses of share capital and reserves attributable to the equity holder of the Company.
Tatal capital is calculated as total equity plus net deb,

Group
2019 2018
Uss LIss
Met dedat 18,401,605 15,374,433
Total equity 29.249 (941,254
Tatal capital 15,430,854 14,433,179
Met debl-le-equity ratio 1.00 1.07

The Group was not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements for the firancisl Vears
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
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Financial Instruments
(4] Financial Risk Management and Policies

The principal risks from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk and foreign exchange risk. The management reviews and manages these risks as follows:

i Creedil vk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, loans portfolio and other reccivables represent
the Group’s maximum exposure fo credit risk.

The Group has insignificant concentration of credin risk.

As part of its risk control procedures, an assessment of the credit quality of a new member, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other factors, is carried out prios to the credit
approval. Individual credit nsk limits are then set based on the assessments done. The utilisation of
eredit limits is regularly monitored. Loans to members are settled via weekly deductions.

The Group placed its surplus funds with licensed financial institutions in Singapore, Tonga, Fiji,
Samoa, Solomon Islands and Vanuatu,

Credit risk grading guideline

The Group and Company has established the Group and Company’s internal credit risk grading to
the different exposures according to their degree of default risk. The internal credit risk prading
which are used to report the Group and Company's credit risk exposure o key management
personnel for credit risk management purposes are as follows:

Intemnal rating grades Definition Basis of recognition of
expected credit loss
{ECL)
i. Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and  12-month ECL
does nol have any past-due amounts.
il. Under-performing There has been a significant increase in credit  Lifetime ECL (ot credit-

risk since initial recogniton (e inlerest  Gmpaired)
andfor principal repayment are more than 30
days past due)

iii. Won-performing There is evidence indicating that the asset is  Lifetime ECL {credit
credit-impaired (i.e. interest and/or principal  impaired)
repayments are more than 90 days past due),

iv, Write-off There iz evidence indicating that there is no  Asset iz written off
reasonable expectation of recovery as the
debor iz in severe [inancial difficulty (ie.
interest andor prncipal repayments are more
than 180 days past due),

&1
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singupoere)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Financial Instrunments [cont"d)

(4] Financial Risk Management and Policies {¢oni d)

{i Credit risk (cont'd)

Credit risk exposiore and signiffcam credit risk concenfralion

The eredit quality of the Group and Company’s financial assets, as well as maximum exposure o
eredit risk by credit risk rating grades is presented as follows:

Ciroup

2014

Loanes porifolio (@)

Cither receivables (curment
nnd pon-cument) {b)

Cash and bank balances (¢}

2018

Loans portfolio (&)

Oither receivables (b)

Cish ond bank balances (]

Company

2019

Amount due from
subsidiarics (B)

Oither receivables (b)

Cash and bank balances {c)

2018

Amount due from
subsidiarizs {b)

Diher receivables {b)

Cash and bank balances ()

Grross
[nternal COTTVINE Loes Met carrying

credil rating ECL amount allowance amoant

Uss Uss LB
Performing  12-month ECL I68516,516 (203917 6,612 /00
Performing  12-month ECL 445900 448 900
Performing  12-month ECL 2,269,901 1,269.901
Performing 1 2-month ECL 13,550,729 (187, 343) 13,363 386
Performing  12-momth ECL 1R0,637 L | B053T
Performing  12-month ECL 1,806,341 806341
Peclorming  12-month ECL 5,609,195 - 5600 195
Performing 1 2-month ECL 1455 1455
Petfoaming [ 2-month ECL 63,984 63,584
Ferforming | 2-memth ECL 2172350 4172350
Performing  13-momth ECL [ 470 1470
Performing 1 2-momth ECL 44,322 - 44,322

L
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Financial Instruments (coni"d)

{a) Financial Risk Management and Policies (cont"d)

il Credid risk {cont"d)

Credit risk exposure and significan! credit risk concentration (cont*d)
Mare a: Loans portfolio

The Group has applied the general approach in FRS 109 to measure loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL at initial recognition. The Group assessed whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recopnition. When credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. Accordingly, the Group determined that the provision for expected credit Ingses as a1
31 December 2019 amounted to USE203,917 (201 8: USS187,343),

Note b Chher recetvables including amount dué from subsidiaries

Other receivables are considered to have low credit risk as they are not due for payment at the end
of the reporting period.  The Group and Company assessed the latest financial performance and
financial position of the counterparties, adjusted for the future outlook of the industry in which the
counterpartics operale in, énd concluded that there has been no significant increase in the credit risk
since the initial recognition of these financial assets. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment
assessment of other receivables, the Group and Company measured the impairment loss allowance
using | 2-month ECL and determined that the ECL is insignificant.

Node e Cash at bonk Balances

Cash and bank balances were placed with reputable banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings and no history of defanlr.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Growp and Company considers that its cash at
hanks has low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties, The Group and
Company uses a similar approach for assessment of ECL for cash and cash equivalents to those
used for debt investments, The amount of the allowance on cash and cash equivalents was
immaterial.

i Interest vate vink

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group and the Company monitors ifs interest rate isks, and changes in fair values from time 10
time and any gans and losses are included in the profit or loss.
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Financial Instruments {cont"d)

{al Financial isk Management and Policies {cont*d)

fig) Interest rete sk (cont'd)

The Group and Company have cash balances placed with reputable banks and financial institations.
Such balances are placed on varying maturities and generate interest income for the Group and
Eun!pang.r_ The Group and Company manage its interest rate risks by placing such balances an
varymg maturities and inteérest rate terms.

The Group ohtains additional financing through bank bomrowings. The Group’s bormowings are

mainly on a fixed interest mte.

The table below sets out the Group's and the Company's exposure to interest rate risks and
information on weighted average effective yield. Included in the table are the Group's assets and
lisbilities at carrying amounts, cateporised by the earlier of contractual repricing or mamrity dates.

Group

2018

Loans portfolio

Other receivables (excluding
PrEpayments)

Cash amd cash equivalents
Members” savings deposits
Oither payables

Amount due 1 a related party

Bank overdrafis

Leaze linbilitics

Bl.'|n'|_1wmg.5

Met financiol asseia/liabilites)

018

Loan= portfolio

Other receivables (excluding
prepayments)

Cash and cash equivalents

Members" savings deposiis

Other payables

Amount dug o o related pariy

Bank overdralis

Obligations under (fhance lease

Bomowings

MNet financial azzared lahilitiag)

Fined rate
Within 2to0 8§ Mom-imlerest

| vear vEars bearing Total

Uss LIS& LSS LI5S
164612 5099 - 16,602 504
= 232,254 216,644 A4 S
10164806 . 1,253 415 2255 901
{3,121, 750) - - (3,121,750)
. = {366, 090) [ 5660540
o {67,454) - (67 434)
(1611, 426) . - (1,6010,425)
(294,521) (400, 1a0y - 6936810
(4471,587) (7668941} (2418.824] (14.55%352)
#3180 (7, 905,209] (1,514 855) (1288, 353)
13,363,386 - 13,363,386
- - LE0.63T 180,637
Q35280 371052 [&0E, 11
{2,780 T12% & - (2,79%.712)
- - (446,085) (466,089}
= (T 615} - (7615}
(1,803,206} . - {1.803,290)
(74.602) (23.106) L (152, 708)
(3,347,683)  (A.550.658)  (1833451) (11,840,703
6373292  (6.718379)  (1,347851)  (1,792.038)

Bl

Effective
interest e
]

O_00%E-25 00%

4 308
0, 10, - 4.25%,
B 50963, 00

. 004
BT 10.530%
00 %= TT.00%%
1.30%-11.00%

G0h-25.00%

0. 10% - 3500
1.50%-3.00%

B.00%
B.T3%-10.50%
B, 50%:-11.00%
[ 50%-14.00%
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Financial Instroments (cont"d)

(a) Financial Risk Management and Policies (cont’d)

fii) fmterest rafe vigk {cont’d)

Fixed rate
Within 23 Mot interest
1 year yEans bearing Total
LS55 IR LIsS Us%
Company
Amount due from subsidiaries Q04 351 2176730 2328127 5009 198
Orther recetvahbles . - 1,455 1,455
Cash and cash equivalents - (3,984 03984
Chther payablog - . [75,7T&G6) (75,78
Borrowings (3,603,703)  (2,190.714) - {5,704 41T)
(2,688 157 (13.984) 2517780 {185 565)
2018
Amcont due from subsidiares 506,115 1,751,330 1,014 670 4,072 350
Other recoivables - - 1470 470
Cagh and cash equivnlents - 44,322 44 322
Cither payables - - {10, 943 (100,543
Borrowings 1,306,866} 3.0134 850 (43,000} (4,386,716
(AO0,331)  (1,2R5.514) 1 880 555 {205,454

(i) Liguidine risk

Effective
interest rage
o

2.00%-1 1 4

5.00%-4,50%

Z.00%-1 1.00%

300050

Liquidity risk 15 the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its
financial ohligations as they fall due to the shortage of funds.

In the management of its liquidity risk, the Group and the Company monitor and maintain a level of
cash and bank balances deemed adequate by management to finance the Groups and the

Company’s operations to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash Nows.

The table below analyses Group's and Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the end of financial year to the contractusl maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balanees due
within 12 months equal their camrying balances as the impact of discounting is not expected to be

sigmficant.
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Financial Instruments {cont™d)

{a) Financial Risk Management and Policies (cont™d)

{iiil Liguieliny wisk (eont™d)

Group

012

Members® savings deposits
Cither pavahles

Amount due 1o & related parly
Bank overdrafis

Lease liahilities

Bomrowings

Total

2018

Members' savings deposits
Other payables

Amount due to a related pany
Bank overdralts

Ohbligations under finance lease
Borrowings

Tatal

Company
2019

Diher pavables
Borrowings
Total

2018

Cither payables
Bormoewings
Taotal

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Carrying Within Between 2 yvear
Amount Toial | year and 35 vears
LIS% Lss LISS LIS%
3,121,750 3182252 3,182,252 -
566,09 Sh6, 090 S66,000 -
67,454 67454 - 67,454
1,611,426 1,780,470 1,780,470 -
603 681 776,35 331,504 444 380
14,559,352 16,093,978 6,451,379 9,644,599
20,619,753 22 468 634 12,311,695 10,156, 939
2700712 2,853,906 2.853,9%%
466,089 66,089 466,089 -
T0.615 70615 - 0,615
|, 803,205 |, 991,797 L.991, 797 -
L62, 7498 199,287 100,442 08,845
[ 1,840 762 14,247,262 5,086,712 0. 147,540
17,143,302 19 820 046 10512046 9,117,000
73,786 75,786 75,786 -
5.794.417 5,725,653 4,046,043 1,679 600
5,870,203 3,801,438 4121829 1,679 609
[ 0,943 L0, 943 10,943 -
4,384,716 3,160,472 1,700,092 3460380
4 487,650 5,261 415 1,801,035 3.460,380
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 209

Financial Instruments {cont"d)
{a) Financial Risk Management and Policies {cont™d)
fiy)  Faveign exchange risk

The Group's exposures to changes in foreign currency rates relate primarily 1o its outstanding
foreign currency bank balances, other receivables and other payvables. The Group monitors
exchange fluctuations and takes appropriate sleps to minimise or reduce exchange losses,

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of its investments in the Kingdom of
Tenga, the Republic of Fiji, Independent State of Samoa, the Solomon Islands and the Republic of
Vanuatu. As these investments are held on long-term basis, these exposures are not hedged.

The transactions in those countries take place in the local currencies of the countries concemed. As
the foreign exchange rates of those operational currencies are zet by their respective central banks
based on a prescribed basket of foreign currencies, the Group tries to hedge the assets in those
countries against significant flucteations in foreign exchange valuation by borrowing in non-local
currencies, in proportions which match, as close as possible, the forsign currencies utilised by the
local central banks to fix their exchange rates, to the best of management’s ability, No other specific
cureney hedging is performed.

a7
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD,
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Financial Instruments (cont'd)
{a} Financial Risk Management and Policies (cont'd)

fivk  Foreign exehange risk (cont'd)

Urnibasd Mew
Stales Fije Singapare Zealaml Auszralinn Teagan
Dndlar Dhallnr Dallar Daodlar Dk lior Ma’anan Tl
Campnny LISE Lss LI5S Uss LI5% L5ES LISS
20149
Finnncial Assets
Mmounts dus From
suhsidiaries 2667 304 - - I.125.425 1417537 IRET2Y 5609193
hher receivablies = - 1 455 - S - 1,455
Cash nnd cash equivaienis AR - 5,13 15,502 13,835 = LERIES
Finamcial Lizlkiliiies
Other poyable (33,0041 - [HRTER) E . : (¥5.786)
Barrowings _ 43026 531) = - CSTTONZY (0,087 - {574
et financizl
{lmahdlitieskassers (1,262, THY) - {36, 202) 544, N5 140498 395,722 {195 Sinh
Lese; M firemczal
lizhiliies denpminated (o
the lunciiomal corrency of
the Coenpnmy 1,262 788 = - = . - 1,263 Ty
Currency exposure - - (3202} S 205 190,498 398722 167,223
2015
Financial Asseis
Armuis due ffom
sub=idinrics 1,785,531 1773 - 073 | 40803 - 4172350
Oither prvablies - . A0 - - - 1470
Cash and cosh cquivalents o - 5,530 2147 532 : 44 372
Fimancinl Liahilitles
Chiber payoble (33,0000} - {67, 3N - . - [FO0,%43)
Bormvwings Li,l';'z,'g'lﬂb - - {1, 134,950 (1,054 832 . (4,356, 716
Met fimanedal
(liabilitics ) assegs (431,677) Ly e (39.534) (195, 728) 379,683 - {268,517
Lesa: Met financial
linbilities denominsed n
the functional currency of
the Conupumy 45167 z - - . - 431,677
Cumency exposune - 3TT0 . (5%5n)  (195.728) 379,683 - 163,160

Fit
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in Singapore)

ANDITS SUBSIMARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Financiol Instroments (cont’d)
(&) Financial Risk Management and Policies (cont'd)
iy Foreign exchange visk {cont™d)

A 5% strengthening of the United States Dollar against the following currencies at the statement of
[inancial position date would increase/{decrease) the profit or loss by the amounts shown above,
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Group Company

Increase! [nerease!

(decroase) {decrease)
Profit or loss Profit or loss

Uss Uss

2015

Singapore Dollar (1,810) (1,810)
FEuro 407 -
New Zealand Dollar {53,542) 28210
Australian Dollar (63,851) 7025
Tongan Pa’anga - | 9,955
2018

Fiji Dodlar - 1 .B87
Singapare Dallar {2,977 (2,977)
Euro 427 -
Mew Zealand Dollar (84,000) (2,786
Australian Dollar (51,403) 15,984

{b} Fair Values
air ¥ i ¥

The Group categorise fair value measurément using a fair value hierarchy that is depended on the
valuation inputs wsed as follows:

(8} Level 1@ guoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities;

ih} Lewvel 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
assel or liability, either directly (that is as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

(] Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unohaervable inpuis).

7l
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Financial Instruments {cont”d)
b Fair Values {cont™d)

Fair value messurement

The following summarnises the significant methods and assumption used in estimating [ir values of
financial instruments of the Group and Company that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis.

fi) Long tevm financial assets and financial liabilities

The camying amounts of amount due from subsidiaries, borrowings and obligations under finance
lenses approximate fair value (Level 2 of fair value hierarchy) as they bear interest al rates which
approximate the current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of lending and borrowing
arrangements.

i) Ciher financial assets and liahilitiey

The carrying amounts of financial assets and lizbilities with a matunity of less than one year are
assumed (o approximate their fair values because of the short period to maturity.

Financing Activities in the Cash Flow Statements

The reconciliation of movement to cash flows arising from the financing activities is presented
below.

Giroup
*—  (Cash flows ——
3
1January  Progeeds  Repavosents  loterest paid  Others® Drecember
Lss LSS LI5S Uss s 5%
2w
Fixad deposits pledped 1o bank
overdrafis (384,628 (1.180} - {335,008}
Cash {restricted 1w members'
savings deposits) {319,833} {16,897 - - {136, 830)

Bank overdrafis 1205 206G {190,870) = - 1,611,426
Members” savings deposits 2700712 {34,859y 356,807 3,121,750
Interes! payabie 39254 - - [T35.824) Tig 504 212022
Smounis due to related parties TAa15 = N = {3,161} §7.454
Leasc liabilities 162,798 - (206,134) (53.272) TROZRD &A1 AR
Bormrawings C11.B40.792 6,200,902 (3,153,523} {62379 333560 14,559,352

15810906 6,200,902 (3.56%604)  (1.506.336) 2206079 19.153,047
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SPBD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

AND ITS SUBSIMARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financing Activities in the Cash Flow Statements (cont’d)

Gronp {cont'd)
g Cagh fMlows —

]|
| January  Procesds  Repayments  Interest pnid — Others® Dreewmbner
LIS LI5S Uss LI5E IS5 LIsE

2018
Fixed depasing pledged to bank
averdrafis (BT, 730) 113,102 - - - {584.628)
Cash {restricted to members”

savings deposiis) (320,6T4) 0743 - - - {319.8933)
Bank overdrafis 1,255,902 543,304 - - . |, &05, 294
Members' savings deposits 2,351,888 - (IT.371) 475095 2. 799712
listerest payable Qf, e = - {801 793y 750,253 39,254
Aimaunis due to relnbed porties T2 0/ = - = {2.346) Tals
Obligation under finance leases 172,06 - (G4, 475) - 55,007 62,798
Bomowings 12 I934R5 3600435 (3.751.918) {457 444) 152334 10,840,758

15113908 4365674 (3.816,393) (1.2R6.60%) 1435325 15811906

Others comprise of interest expense, unrealised foreign exchange differences and movement under
aperaling activities,

Company
*———  Cash fows —_—
i1
I dnpuary  Proceeds  Repayments  Imterest paid — Others**  December
Uss Uss LI5S Uss 58 LIss
n1a
Horrowings 4,386,716  1RPSOEF  {I 404, 155) (412.545) J984H 5704417
n1s
Bormowings 5422365 630,000  (]441,503) (437 444) 213,208 4,386,716

#%  (nhers comprise of interest expense and unrealised foreign exchange differences.

73



SPBRD MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in Singapore)

THE FOLLOWING DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR MANAGEMENT PURPOSES ONLY

AND DOES NOT FORM PART OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



SPBED MICROFINANCE HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE, LTD,
{Incorporated in Singaporce)

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2019 2018
uss IS5

REVENUE

Murnagement income 576,000 566,281
Interesi income 251,353 207,255
Professional fee income g 000 63, 300

836,353 838,036

OTHER INCOME 104 984 43153
LESS: EXPENSES

FINAMCIAL EXPEMSE 395162 363,190
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditor™s remuneration 25,000 I3 T8
Bank charges Q754 7037
Dirzcior’s fee 1,450 1,728
(iher expenses 310 6,224
Legal and professional fee 27,602 27,743
Managemeni fee 132,000 132,000
Salarics amd wapes 54,000 63,710
Servios fee 132,000 E32.008
Travelling expenses 2316 7,808
Withholding tax expenses TH.9E6 [03 B4

464,427 06,142

PROFT BEFORE INCOME TAX 81,747 11,857

NOT PART OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



